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Šiaulių sakralinį maršrutą kvie-
čiame pradėti nuo pačios svar-

biausios šventovės – Šiaulių Šv. apašta-
lų Petro ir Pauliaus katedros, stovinčios 
pačiame miesto centre. Iš kurios pu-
sės bevažiuotumėte į Šiaulius, ant 
aukštumos pastatytas baltas septy-
niasdešimties metrų Katedros bokštas 
matomas iš tolo. Katedros pašonėje 
įkurtame Pastoraciniame centre galite 
pailsėti ir tęsti kelionę. Talkšos gatve 
nusileiskite iki Rygos gatvėje stovin-
čios nedidukės stačiatikių cerkvės. 
Už jos  – unikalus istorinis muziejus 
po atviru dangumi – senosios Talkšos 
kapinės. Vaikščiodami Vilniaus gatvės 

SAKRALUMO ŽENKLAI ŠIAULIUOSE

We invite you to start the sacred 
route of Šiauliai from the most 

important shrine – Šiauliai St Apostles 
Peter and Paul’s Cathedral standing in 
the very centre of the city. No matter 
from which side you drive to Šiauliai, 
the white seventy-meter-tall tower of 
the Cathedral built on the high ground 
can be seen from a distance. You can 
rest in the Pastoral Centre set up next 
to the Cathedral and continue your 
journey. Go down Talkša Street to the 
tiny Orthodox Church on Rygos street. 
There is a unique open-air historical 
museum – the old Talkša cemetery – 
behind it. Walking along Vilniaus stre-
et boulevard, do not miss the alley of 
Pope John Paul II, at the end of which 

SACRALITY SIGNS IN ŠIAULIAI

Šiaulių vyskupija patikėta Švč. Mergelės Marijos globai, o ganytojo šūkis 
kviečia: „Visuomet džiaukitės Viešpatyje“ (Fil 4,4). Ši kelionė, 
mielas piligrime, tebūna džiaugsmo kelionė! 

Šiaulių vyskupas Eugenijus Bartulis

The Diocese of Šiauliai is entrusted to Blessed Virgin Mary’s care, while 
the pastor’s motto invites “Rejoice in the Lord always” (Phil 4,4). Let this 
journey, dear pilgrim, be the journey of joy!

- Bishop of Šiauliai Eugenijus Bartulis-

bulvaru nepraeikite popiežiaus Jono 
Pauliaus II alėjos, kurios gale – švento-
jo popiežiaus paminklas ir Šv. Ignaco 
Lojolos bažnytėlė, mokykla. Netoli ge-
ležinkelio stoties stovi neobizantinė 
Šv. Jurgio bažnyčia, žavinti romantišku 
apšvietimu naktį. Pietiniame miesto 
mikrorajone atrasite maldai suglaus-
tus delnus primenančią moderniausią 
miesto bažnyčią, kviečiančią atgaivinti 
sielą nuolatinės adoracijos koplyčioje. 
Pietrytiniame miesto pakraštyje, Rė-
kyvoje, veikia 1932 m. maldininkams 
atidaryta Šv. Juozapo Darbininko baž-
nytėlė. Už Šiaulių, važiuodami Rygos 
kryptimi, rasite Kryžių kalną. 

„ „
the monument to the Holy Pope, St     
Ignatius of Loyola Church and the 
school stand. The Neo-Byzantine-style 
St George’s Church enchanting by its 
romantic lighting at night stands not 
far from the railway station. In the so-
uthern residential area of the city, you 
will find the most modern church of 
the city, reminding palms put toge-
ther for prayer, inviting to revive the 
soul in the Chapel of Perpetual Ado-
ration. St Joseph the Worker Church, 
opened for pilgrims in 1932, operates  
on the south-eastern outskirts of the 
city, in Rėkyva. Outside Šiauliai, going 
in the direction of Riga, you will disco-
ver the Hill of Crosses.
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vęs ant senosios bažnyčios.
Pirma medinė bažnyčia Šiauliuose 

pastatyta 1445 m. Žemaičių seniūno 
Mykolo Kęsgailos. Į šią mūrinės bažny-
čios pirmtakę paskirtas nuolatinis ku-
nigas. Nors šventovė buvo nedidelė, 
joje tilpo didysis medinis trijų tarpsnių 
altorius. Medinė bažnyčia neturėjo 
aukšto varpinės bokšto. Medinė var-
pinė stovėjo atskirai – šalia mūrijamos 
naujos bažnyčios. Pastačius mūrinę 
bažnyčią (to reikalavo didėjantis mies-
to gyventojų skaičius), medinės baž-
nyčios istorija, trukusi du šimtmečius, 
pasibaigė – ji buvo išardyta.

Šv. apaštalų Petro ir Pauliaus katedra, 
Renesanso epochos architektūros pa-
minklas, pastatyta 1634 m. Jos įspū-
dingas aukštis (bokšto viršūnė siekia 
70 m, planuojama padaryti prieinamą 
turistams) ir gynybinis pobūdis – iš-
skirtinės Šiaulių katedros ypatybės. 
Tai lėmė renesanso stiliaus tradicijos ir 
praktinė būtinybė – sakralinių pastatų 
lobynai viliodavo plėšikus. Pietiniame 
bažnyčios fasade išlikęs saulės laikro-
dis (įrengimo data nežinoma) – tai me-
talinis strypelis, nuo kurio krintantis še-
šėlis rodo laiką tarp 7 val. ryto ir 5  val. 
vakaro. Išlikęs ir metalinis kryžius, bu-

Šv. Apaštalų Petro ir Pauliaus katedra

2016 m. Šiaulių katedroje įrengta 
Gailestingumo koplyčia su Šv. Jono 
Pauliaus II, palaimintojo kunigo Myko-
lo Sopočkos, Šv. Faustinos Kovalskos, 
palaimintojo Teofiliaus Matulionio re-
likvijomis. Ypač gerbiamas Švč. Mer-
gelės Marijos su Kūdikiu paveikslas. 

Šiaulių klebonas Petras Tarvainis 
buvo entuziastingas Šv. apaštalų Petro 
ir Pauliaus katedros (anuomet – bažny-
čios) statybos iniciatorius.

Petras Tarvainis iš daugelio to laik-
mečio dvasininkų išsiskyrė tuo, kad 
mokėjo ne tik lotyniškai, lenkiškai, bet 
ir lietuviškai. Lietuvių kalba jis parašė 
silabinės eilėdaros poezijos kūrinį, 14 
eilučių panegiriką Žemaičių vyskupui 
Jurgiui Tiškevičiui, 1634 m. atvyku-
siam pašventinti naujai pastatytos 
bažnyčios. 

Pastatas labai pasikeitė, kai 1880  m. 
liepos mėnesį į bažnyčios bokštą tren-
kė žaibas ir sudegino medinę jo vir-

šūnę. Po remonto atstatytas bokštas 
prarado renesansui būdingą siluetą. 
Per Pirmąjį ir Antrąjį pasaulinius karus 
pastatas vėl buvo apgriautas, o jo at-
statymas truko net iki 1956 m. Restau-
racijos darbams vadovavo inžinierius 
V. Kriščiūnas ir architektas S. Ramunis. 

1997 m. gegužės 28 d., Šventajam 
Tėvui Jonui Pauliui II įsteigus Šiaulių 
vyskupiją, pirmuoju vyskupu nomi-
nuotas Kauno tarpdiecezinės kunigų 
seminarijos rektorius kun. Eugenijus 
Bartulis. Bažnyčiai suteiktas katedros 
titulas. Po rekonstrukcijos Šiaulių kate-
dra tapo balčiausia tarp Lietuvos baž-
nyčių, atskleistas unikalus jos vidinės 
architektūros grožis. 

Šiaulių Šv. apaštalų Petro ir Pauliaus 
katedra – piligrimystės į Kryžių kalną 
pradžios vieta. Dievo Motinos koply-
čioje vyksta litanijos ar rožinio malda. 
Dievo Gailestingumo koplyčioje kal-
bamas Dievo Gailestingumo vainikėlis.

Malda yra geriausiai mus sujungiantis ryšys. Tik per maldą tikintieji su-
sitinka kitame lygmenyje, kuriame nelygybė, nesusipratimai, kartėlis ir 
priešiškumas įveikiami, įveikiami Dievo, Viešpaties ir mūsų visų Tėvo, 
akivaizdoje. 

Jonas Paulius II

Aušros takas 3 
www.siauliukatedra.lt 
Tel. +370 615 26 555

Šiokiadieniais: 
7.00, 7.30, 
17.00, 
18.00 val.

„ Šv
. M

iš
ių

 la
ik

as Sekmadieniais: 
8.00, 9.30, 
11.00, 12.30 ir 
18.00 val.

Šeštadieniais: 
8.00, 9.00, 
10.00 
(sudėtinės), 
17.00, 18.00 val. 
(sudėtinės)
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St Apostles Peter and Paul’s Cathe-
dral, Renaissance architectural monu-
ment, was built in 1634. Its impressive 
height (the top of the tower reaches 70 
m, the possibility for tourists to go up is 
planned) and defensive nature are the 
greatest originality of Šiauliai Cathe-
dral. This was due to Renaissance style 
traditions and practical necessity: the 
treasure troves of sacred buildings 
tempted robbers. The sundial (the 
date of installation is unknown) has re-
mained on the southern facade of the 
Cathedral.  Its metal rod casts a sha-

dow showing time between 7 am and 
5 pm. The metal cross that was present 
on the old church has also remained.

The first wooden church in Šiauliai 
was built in 1445 by the Samogitian 
elder Mykolas Kęsgaila. A permanent 
priest was appointed to this precursor 
of the brick church. Although small in 
volume, the shrine accommodated 
the great three-stage wooden altar. 
The wooden church did not have a tall 
belfry tower. The wooden belfry stood 
apart – next to the new church being 
built. Upon construction of the brick 

church (this was required due to the 
city’s growing population), the history 
of the wooden church, which lasted 
for two centuries, was finished – the 
church was dismantled.

In 2016, the Cathedral was equip-
ped with the Chapel of Mercy with the 
relics of St John Paul II, Blessed Micha-
el Sopoćko and St Faustina Kowalska, 
Blessed Teofilius Matulionis. Particu-
larly revered is the picture of Blessed 
Virgin Mary with Baby.

The pastor of Šiauliai Petras Tarvai-
nis was an enthusiastic initiator of the 
construction of St Apostles Peter and 
Paul’s Cathedral (then, the church).

  Petras Tarvainis distinguished him-
self  from many clergymen of that time 
by his ability to speak not only Latin, 
Polish but also Lithuanian. He wrote a 
syllabic poetry work – a 14-line pane-
gyric on the Samogitian bishop Jurgis 
Tiškevičius, who came to consecrate 
the newly built church in 1634.

The building considerably changed 
after July of 1880, when lightning 
struck the church tower and the wo-
oden top burnt. The tower restored 
after repairs lost its Renaissance silho-
uette.

During World Wars I and II, the buil-
ding was damaged again. Recons-
truction during the post-war period 

lasted until 1956. Restoration works 
were led by engineer V. Kriščiūnas 
and architect S. Ramunis.

On May 28, 1997, after the Holy 
Father John Paul II established the 
new Diocese of Šiauliai, the first 
appointed bishop was priest Eugeni-
jus Bartulis, the Rector of Kaunas Inter-
diocesian Priest Seminary. The church 
was given the title of the cathedral. 
After the reconstruction, the cathedral 
became the whitest among Lithuanian 

churches, and the unique beau-
ty of the interior architecture 
was revealed.

Šiauliai St Apostles Peter and 
Paul’s Cathedral is the starting 
point of the pilgrimage to the 
Hill of Crosses. The Litany or Ro-
sary is prayed in the Chapel of 
the Mother of God. The chaplet 
of Divine Mercy is spoken in the 
Chapel of God’s Mercy.

Aušros takas 3 
www.siauliukatedra.lt 
Phone: +370 615 26 555

On Sundays: 
8 am, 9.30 am, 
11 am, 12.30 pm 
and 6 pm

The prayer is the connection that best unites us. It is only through prayer 
that believers meet at another level where inequality, misunderstan-
dings, bitterness and hostility are overcome, overcome in the presence 
of God, the Lord, and the Father of us all.

  John Paul II
M

as
s 

ti
m

es On Saturdays:
8 am, 9 am, 10 am 
(composite), 
5 pm, 6 pm 
(composite)

On weekdays: 
7 am, 7.30 am, 
5 pm, 6 pm

„
St Apostles Peter and Paul’s Cathedral
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The Old (Talkšos) CemeterySenosios (Talkšos) kapinės

Senosios (Talkšos) kapinės susideda 
iš trijų dalių: katalikų, stačiatikių ir lais-
vamanių. Viena iš seniausių kapaviečių 
grupių – šeimyniniai rūsiai. Galima tik 
spėti, kad pirmieji rūsiai galėjo būti 
įrengti XVIII–XIX a. sandūroje, o didžioji 
jų dalis įrengta XIX a. antroje pusėje.

Manoma, kad kapinėse masiškai pra-
dėta laidoti 1831 m. mieste siautusios 
choleros metu. Vienas iš seniausių ant-
kapinių paminklų yra ant kapinių seno-
sios dalies aukštumos, netoli buvusios 

koplyčios. Plokštėje nurodyta mirimo 
data – 1801 m. Prie Talkšos ežero esan-
čių kapinių teritorija – 4,46 ha.

Senosiose kapinėse palaidota daug 
iškilių asmenybių – mokytojų, kunigų, 
inžinierių, teisininkų, menininkų, gydy-
tojų, karių. Senosios kapinės priglaudė 
poetą, aušrininką Juozą Miliauską-Mi-
glovarą. Čia palaidotas filosofas, pro-
fesorius, pedagogas, paskutinis nepri-
klausomos Lietuvos Vytauto Didžiojo 
universiteto rektorius Stasys Šalkauskis, 
čia ilsisi advokatas, visuomenės veikė-
jas, socialdemokratas Kazimieras Ven-
clauskis, jo dukra, Šiaulių garbės pilie-
tė, teisininkė Gražbylė Venclauskaitė, 
grafų Zubovų vaikų auklėtojas ir moky-
tojas Adomas Tuchto, kunigas, blaivy-
bės apaštalas Ignacas Štachas. 

Šiaulių senosiose kapinėse oficialiai 
nebelaidojama nuo 1959 m.

Šiaulių vyskupijos Pastoracinio cen-
tro išskirtinumas – dailininkės Gražinos 
Arlauskaitės-Vingrienės dvejus metus 
renesanso meistrų technika kurtos šla-
pios freskos. Šiame darbe nenaudota 
jokių cheminių dažų – visi atspalviai, 
pustoniai išgauti tik iš natūralių žemės 
kilmės pigmentų. Freska skirta šv. apaš-
talams Petrui ir Pauliui. Įspūdingo dy-
džio, maždaug 40 m² užimanti keturių 
dalių freska „Credo“ yra pirmame pas-
tato aukšte ir geriausiai atsiskleidžia 
siauroje galerijoje einant nuo vienos 
jos dalies prie kitos.

Centras pašventintas 2013 m. rugpjū-
čio 22 d. Po vienu stogu glaudžiasi Šiau-
lių vyskupijos kurija, Bažnytinis teismas, 
Katechetikos, Jaunimo, Šeimos ir Evan-
gelizacijos centrai, „Caritas“. Maldai 
skirta Šv. Kazimiero koplyčia, maldos 
kambarys. Galima išsinuomoti vieną 
iš trijų salių. Veikia knygynas-svetainė 
„Prie katedros“, kuriame galima įsigyti 
teologinės, filosofinės, psichologinės, 
grožinės literatūros, religinio meno dir-
binių, muzikos įrašų ar tiesiog pasimė-
gauti pyragu, arbata..

The uniqueness of the Pastoral Centre 
of Šiauliai Diocese is wet frescos created 
by artist Gražina Arlauskaitė-Vingrienė 
during two years, employing the tech-
nique used by Renaissance masters. 
No chemical paints were used in this 
work: all shades, undertones are deri-
ved exclusively from natural pigments 
of earth origin. The fresco is dedicated 
to the Holy Apostles Peter and Paul. Im-
pressive in its size, the four-piece fresco 
“Credo” occupying about 40 m² unfolds 
walking past it from one part to another 
in the narrow gallery on the ground flo-
or of the centre.

The centre was consecrated on 22 
August, 2013. It houses Šiauliai Dio-
cese Curia, Church Court, Centres of 
Catechetics, Youth, Family, and Evan-
gelization, Caritas. The Chapel of Saint 
Casimir, the prayer room are intended 
for prayers. One of the three halls can 
be rented. There is a bookstore-lounge 
“Prie katedros”, where you can buy the-
ological, philosophical, psychological 
books, fiction, religious art items, music 
records or just enjoy a cake, tea..

The Old (Talkšos) Cemetery consists 
of three parts: Catholic, Orthodox and 
Free Thinkers’ cemetery. One of the ol-
dest groups of graves is family vaults. 
We can only guess that first vaults co-
uld have been equipped at the junc-
tion of 18th and 19th centuries, while 
the majority of them were equipped in 
the second half of the 19th century.

It is believed that mass burying in the 
cemetery started in 1831, when cholera 
raved in the city. One of the oldest tombs-
tones in the cemetery is located on the 
elevation of the old part of the cemetery, 
not far from the former chapel. The table 
says that the year of death is 1801. The ce-
metery located near Lake Talkša occupies 
the area of 4,46 hectares.

Many prominent figures are buried in 
the old cemetery:  teachers, priests, en-
gineers, lawyers, artists, doctors, soldiers. 
The old cemetery sheltered Juozas Mi-
liauskas-Miglovaras, the poet, who wrote 
in the newspaper “Aušra”. Philosopher, 
professor, teacher, the last rector of Vytau-
tas Magnus University of independent Li-
thuania Stasys Šalkauskis; the lawyer and 
public figure, social democrat Kazimieras 
Venclauskis; his daughter lawyer Gražby-
lė Venclauskaitė, who is the honorary ci-
tizen of Šiauliai; count Zubovai children’s 
child-minder and teacher Adomas Tuch-
to; the priest and the apostle of tempe-
rance Ignacas Štachas rest here.

There have been no official burials in 
the old cemetery of Šiauliai since 1959.

Šiaulių vyskupijos 
pastoracinis centras

The Pastoral Centre 
of Šiauliai Diocese

„Dabar pasilieka tikėjimas, viltis ir 
meilė..., bet didžiausia jame yra 
meilė (1 Kor 13, 13).

And now these three remain: faith, 
hope and love. But the greatest of 
these is love.” (1 Corinthians 13, 13).

„Tilžės St. 186, Šiauliai 
Phone: +370 41 521 110

Tilžės g. 186, Šiauliai 
Tel. +370 41 521 110

Ežero g. 64, Šiauliai Ežero St. 64, Šiauliai 
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Kunigas Ignacas Štachas (gimė 
1797  m. spalio 9 d. Varniuose, mirė 
1854 m. spalio 28 d. Šiauliuose) – vie-
nas blaivybės pradininkų Lietuvoje.

Išliko pasakojimų, kad, prie kunigo 
I. Štacho kapo pasimeldę už jo sielą, 
žmonės sulaukdavo įvairių malonių, iš-
sipildydavo visi jų norai. Anksčiau prieš 
egzaminus čia lankydavosi gimnazistai 
ir studentai. Pasakojama, kad keliais 
apie jo kapą eidavo nevilties apimti 
žmonės ir paklydėliai, norintys sugrįžti 
į doros kelią. Kunigas palaidotas Seno-
siose kapinėse, šv. Jono kalnelio šlaite. 

I. Štachas su bendraminčiais apie 
1846 m. pradėjo registruoti parapi-
jiečius, norinčius tapti blaivininkais, 
ir įkūrė Blaivybės broliją. Veikla buvo 

vaisinga – per dešimtmetį Šiauliuose 
gerokai sumažėjo parduotuvių, pre-
kiaujančių alkoholiu. Šį I. Štacho pra-
dėtą darbą labai vertino ir toliau tęsė 
Žemaičių vyskupas Motiejus Valan-
čius, 1858 m. paskelbęs savo garsųjį 
laišką ir pakvietęs visus kurti tautos 
išblaivinimo sąjūdį.

      AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
2016 m. Šiaulių vyskupas Eugenijus 
Bartulis paskelbė apie pradedamą 
kunigo Ignaco Štacho beatifikacijos 
bylą. Patyrusieji malonių melsdami 
Dievo tarno I. Štacho užtarimo 
yra prašomi pasidalyti savo 
liudijimais el. paštu 
siauliubeatifikacija@gmail.com arba 
užsukti į Šiaulių vyskupijos kuriją, 
Tilžės g. 198, Šiauliai.

Malda
Mūsų visų Dieve Tėve, Tave labai 
pamilęs Tavo tarnas kunigas Ignacas 
Štachas degė ryžtinga meile gelbėti 
žmones, šėtono klastingai įviliotus į 
priklausomybę nuo alkoholio. Mel-
džiame Tave, Dieve, skirk nuolankų-
jį savo tarną kunigą Ignacą Štachą 
mūsų užtarėju ir globėju kovai su 
žmogaus sielą ir kūną mirtinai žalo-
jančiomis priklausomybėmis. Amen. 
Meldžiuosi už šiuos asmenis................ 
ir priklausomybes ....................... 
(Malda iš lankstinuko meldžiantis 
Dievo tarno kun. Ignaco Štacho 
paskelbimo palaimintuoju.)

Priest and Šiauliai pastor Ignacas 
Štachas (October 9, 1797, in Varniai - 
October 28, 1854, in Šiauliai) is one of 
the pioneers of sobriety in Lithuania.

Stories have remained that after 
praying for priest I.Štachas’ soul at his 
grave, people would receive various 
graces, their all wishes and desires 
fulfilled. Previously, gymnasium pupils 
and students would come here befo-
re the exam. It is said that people in 
despair and misguided persons who 
wanted to get back to the path of 
virtue would go around the grave on 
their knees.

The priest is buried on the slope of 
St John’s Hill in the old cemetery of 
the city. Around 1846, I. Štachas with 
his like-minded fellows began regis-
tering parishioners who wanted to 
become teetotallers and founded the 
Brotherhood of Sobriety.  The activity 
was fruitful: during the decade, the 
number of shops selling alcohol in 
Šiauliai significantly decreased. This 
work initiated by I. Štachas was highly 
appreciated and continued by Samo-
gitian bishop Motiejus Valančius. In 
1858, he announced his famous letter 
inviting everyone to join the move-
ment of the nation’s sobering.

Prayer
God the Father of us all, your Servant 
priest Ignacas Štachas, who loved 
you so much, was burning with de-
termined love to rescue people tre-
acherously trapped by the devil in 
alcohol addiction. Let us pray to you 
God, appoint your humble Servant 
priest Ignacas Štachas to be our in-
tercessor and guardian, fighting ad-
dictions that are mortally damaging 
the human soul and body. Amen.
I pray for these individuals ................ 
and addictions .......................
(The prayer from a leaflet, praying for 
declaring the Servant of God priest 
Ignacas Štachas blessed)

Kunigo Ignaco Štacho kapas Senosiose (Talkšos) kapinėse The grave of priest Ignacas Štachas in the Old (Talkša) Cemetery 

      DO YOU KNOW THAT...
In 2016, the bishop of Šiauliai 
Eugenijus Bartulis announced the 
initiation of the case for beatification 
of priest Ignacas Štachas. Those who 
have experienced mercies, praying for 
the intercession of Servant of God 
I. Štachas, are asked to share their 
testimonies by e-mail 
siauliubeatifikacija@gmail.com or visit 
the Curia of Šiauliai Diocese, 
Tilžės St. 198, Šiauliai

Ežero g.

?

Ežero St.

?
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Stasys Šalkauskis (gimė 1886 m. gegu-
žės 16 d. Ariogaloje, mirė 1941 m. gruo-
džio 4 d. Šiauliuose) – vienas žymiausių 
Lietuvos filosofų ir katalikų intelektualų, 
pedagogas, visuomenės veikėjas, il-
gametis Lietuvos universiteto profeso-
rius ir paskutinis rektorius. S. Šalkaus-
kis – vienas iš Lietuvos katalikų mokslo 
akademijos kūrėjų, nuo 1933 m. ir jos 
akademikas, katalikiškos spaudos orga-
nizatorius ir bendradarbis, ateitininkų, 
įtakingiausios lietuvių katalikiško jauni-
mo organizacijos, ideologas ir vadovas. 

Stasys Šalkauskis (May 16, 1886, in 
Ariogala - December 4, 1941, in Šiauliai) 
is one of the most prominent Lithuanian 
philosophers and Catholic intellectuals, 
educator, public figure, professor who 
worked at the University of Lithuania for 
a long time and was its last rector. One 
of the creators of the Lithuanian Catho-
lic Academy of Science; from 1933, its 
academician. Organizer and co-worker 
to the Catholic press. Ideologist and le-
ader of Ateitininkai, the most influential 
Lithuanian Catholic youth organization.

     

Rygos g. 2a, Šiauliai, tel. +370 41 432 910

Cerkvėje pamaldos vyksta tik sekmadieniais

1867 m. Šiaulių miesto aikštėje iškilo 
stačiatikių cerkvė, telkusi vos 1,8 proc. 
visų miesto gyventojų – daugiausia 
rusų tautybės žmonių. 

1937 m. cerkvė iš centrinės miesto 
aikštės perkelta prie stačiatikių kapinių, 
į dabartinę jos vietą. Cerkvės perstaty-
mo projektas datuojamas 1936 m. Cer-
kvė, stovėjusi prie katalikų 
Šv.  Petro ir Povilo bažnyčios, 
buvo nugriauta. Senosios 
cerkvės vietoje sovietiniais 
laikais buvo įrengtas fonta-
nas. Senosios cerkvės staty-
binės medžiagos panaudo-
tos statant naująją cerkvę. 
Pamatuose yra dvi granito 
plytos su datomis, žyminčio-
mis senosios cerkvės statybą 
(1864 m.) ir naujosios pra-
džią (1937 m.).

Naujajai cerkvei vieta 
parinkta šalia stačiatikių kapinių, ant 
dirbtinai supilto kalnelio. Oficialiai ir iš-
kilmingai naujoji cerkvė buvo pašven-
tinta 1938 m. rugsėjo 17 d. Tik po tokio 
pašventinimo cerkvėje galima melstis. 
Iki pat šių dienų čia veikia Stačiatikių 
centras.

Rygos St. 2a, Šiauliai, ph.: +370 41 432 910

Church services are held only on Sundays

In 1867, the Orthodox Church arose in 
the square of Šiauliai city, attracting har-
dly 1,8 per cent of all city’s population  – 
mostly  people of Russian nationality.

In 1937, the Orthodox Church was 
moved from the city’s central square to 
its current place near the Orthodox ce-
metery.  The design for redesigning the 

Orthodox Church dates back to 1936. 
The Orthodox Church that stood near 
the Catholic St Peter and Paul’s Church, 
was demolished. In Soviet times, a fo-
untain was equipped in the place of 
the old Orthodox Church.

The new Orthodox Church was 
built using the building materials of 
the old one. The foundation contains 
two granite bricks with dates marking 
the construction of the old Orthodox 
Church – 1864 and the new one – 1937.

The location for the new Orthodox 
Church was chosen next to the Ortho-
dox cemetery, on an artificially heaped 
hill. The new church was officially and 
solemnly consecrated on September 17, 
1938. Only after such consecration, it is 
permissible to pray in the church. To this 
day, the Orthodox centre operates here.

       AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
„Žmogaus laimė pereina ne tiek nuo 
išviršinių gyvenimo aplinkybių, kiek nuo 
vidinio nusistatymo bei sugebėjimo 
būti laimingam. Žmogus laimės ieškoti 
visų pirma privalo dorinės prievolės 
pildyme ir aukštųjų idealų vykdyme. 
Laimė apskritai yra tolimesnis netiesio-
ginis gyvenimo tikslas, o sugebėjimas 
būti laimingam visose gyvenimo 
aplinkybėse yra ugdomoji vertybė.“

 Stasys Šalkauskis

„Visa atnaujinti Kristuje!“ – toks buvo 
ateitininkų ir S. Šalkauskio šūkis bei sie-
kis. Filosofas daug vilčių dėjo į jaunimą, 
svarbiausiu kiekvieno kataliko uždavi-
niu jis laikė prigimtinę jaunatvę pavers-
ti dvasine jaunatve ir išsaugoti ją visą 
gyvenimą, niekuomet nesustoti prie 
to, kas jau pasiekta, bet vis dar tobulin-
tis darbe, santykiuose su žmonėmis ir 
bendraujant su Dievu.

      DO YOU KNOW THAT...
Stasys Šalkauskis’ thoughts about 
happiness
“A person’s happiness depends not that 
much on superficial circumstances of 
life as on the inner attitude and the abili-
ty to be happy. In the first place, the per-
son must look for happiness in fulfilling 
his moral duty and realising the highest 
ideals. Happiness in general is a further 
and not immediate goal of life, while the 
ability to be happy in all circumstances 
of life is an educational value.”

To renew all in Christ! – such was 
the slogan and striving of Ateitininkai 
members and S. Šalkauskis. The philo-
sopher had high hopes for the youth of 
every generation, he maintained that 
the crucial task of every Catholic was 
to transform his natural youth into spiri-
tual youth and to permanently preser-
ve it throughout one’s life, never stop 
at what has already been achieved but 
still improve in work, relationships with 
people and communication with God. 

?

?

Stasio Šalkauskio kapas 
Senosiose (Talkšos) kapinėse

The grave of Stasys Šalkauskis 
in the Old (Talkša) Cemetery

Šv. Petro ir Povilo stačiatikių 
parapijos cerkvė

St Peter and Paul’s Orthodox 
Parish Church
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The Neo-Byzantine-style church was 
built in Šiauliai in 1909 for the funds 
of the Russian Tsarist government. On 
November 9, 1908, the Orthodox-

Church was consecrated, it was given St 
George’s name. Initially, it was a Russian 
military Orthodox Church. Upon with-
drawal of the Tsarist army from Lithua-
nia in 1915, the Orthodox Church was 
closed and not used for a certain time. 

During World War I, Germans turned 
the church into a warehouse. After the 
war, it was given over for spiritual ne-
eds of the 3rd  Regiment of the Lithu-
anian Armed Forces. On June 2, 1919, 
Šiauliai Dean Julijonas Jasenskis con-
secrated the church and gave it the 
name of St George the Martyr.

     DO YOU KNOW THAT...
Every second Sunday of the month 
after the Sunday Mass at 12.30 pm,  a 
procession around the Church takes 
place. Children and youth choir sings 
at the 11 am Mass on Sundays. Since 
pre-war times, the tradition has re-
mained that St Easter morning chants 
are accompanied by the brass band 
music.

Bažnyčia yra miesto centre, prie pat 
Vilniaus gatvės bulvaro. Bažnyčia su-
būrė tvirtą, gyvą, pamaldžią tikinčiųjų 
bendruomenę. 1993 m. rugsėjo 7 d. 
vizito į Lietuvą metu popiežius Jonas 
Paulius II palaimino ne tik bažnyčią, 
bet ir būsimą mokyklą. Šiuo metu prie 
bažnyčios veikia jėzuitų katalikiškoji 
pradinė mokykla.

Jėzuitų vienuolija Šiauliuose įsikūrė 
1930 m. Kunigo Benedikto Andruš-
kos (pirmojo rektoriaus) rūpesčiu 
1935   m. pastatyta viešoji oratorija. 
1949 m. Šiaulių Šv. Ignaco bažnyčia ir 
vienuolynas buvo uždaryti, bažnyčioje 
įrengtas sandėlis, vėliau sporto salė. 

Neobizantinio stiliaus bažnyčia Šiau-
liuose pastatyta 1908 m. rusų carinės 
valdžios lėšomis. 1908 m. lapkričio 9 d. 
cerkvė pašventinta ir pavadinta Šv. Ge-
orgijaus vardu. Iš pradžių tai 
buvo rusų kariuomenės cerkvė. 
1915 m. carinei kariuomenei 
pasitraukus iš Lietuvos, cerkvė 
uždaryta ir kurį laiką nebuvo 
naudojama. 

Per Pirmąjį pasaulinį karą vo-
kiečiai bažnyčią pavertė san-
dėliu. Po karo ji perduota Lie-
tuvos kariuomenės III pulko 
dvasinėms reikmėms. 1919 m. 
birželio 2 d. Šiaulių dekanas Julijonas 
Jasenskis pašventino bažnyčią ir sutei-
kė jai Šv. Jurgio kankinio titulą. 

     AR ŽINOTE, KAD... 
Kiekvieną mėnesio antrą sekmadienį 
po 12.30 val. šv. Mišių eina proce-
sija aplink Bažnyčią. Sekmadieniais 
11.00  val. šv. Mišiose gieda vaikų 
ir jaunimo choras. Nuo prieškario 
laikų išlikusi tradicija šv. Velykų ryto 
giesmėms pritarti pučiamųjų orkestro 
muzika.

Šv. Jurgio bažnyčia St George’s Church

Kražių g. 17, Šiauliai, www.jurgioparapija.lt, 
tel. +370 41 526 220.

Šv
. M

iš
ių

 la
ik

as Darbo 
dienomis: 
7.30, 
17.00 val.

Sekmadie-
niais: 8.00, 
9.30, 11.00, 
12.30 val.

Šeštadieniais: 
8.00, 10.00 
(sudėtinės už 
mirusiuosius), 
17.00 val. M

as
s 

ti
m

es On Sundays: 
8 am, 
9.30 am, 
11 am, 
12.30 pm

On Saturdays: 
8 am, 10 am 
(composite 
Mass for the 
dead), 5 pm

On 
weekdays: 
7.30 am, 
5 pm 

Kražių St. 17, Šiauliai, www.jurgioparapija.lt, 
phone: +370 41 526 220.

Vilniaus g. 247b, Šiauliai 
Tel. +370 698 33 300

Sekmadieniais: 
9.00, 11.00 val.

Šeštadieniais: 
10.00 val.

Šiokiadieniais: 
18.00 val. 
(išskyrus 
pirmadienį)

Šv. Ignaco Lojolos bažnyčia

„ Jei Dievas siunčia tau daug kentėjimų, tai ženklas, kad Jis turi tau didelių 
planų ir kad, be abejo, nori padaryti tave šventą. Kuo dosnesnis būsi Die-
vui, tuo daugiau patirsi jo kilniadvasiškumo.

Šv. Ignacas Lojola

Šv
. M

iš
ių

 
la

ik
as

1986 m., prisidengus mažojo teatro 
būtinybe, tuometinės miesto valdžios 
rūpesčiu gautas finansavimas ir pra-
dėta bažnyčios restauracija. 1988 m. 
joje vyko lietuviškos dramaturgijos 
festivalis „Atgaiva“. 1990 m. bažnyčia 
grąžinta tikintiesiems, gruodžio 22 d. 
ji pašventinta.

       AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
Kiekvieną ketvirtadienį po vakaro 
šv. Mišių bažnyčioje organizuojama 
Švč. Sakramento adoracija. Pirmąjį 
mėnesio penktadienį vyksta Maldos ir 
budėjimo vakaras kartu su Nacionaline 
egzorcistų asociacija.
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The church is lo-
cated in the city 
centre, very close 
to the pedestrian 
boulevard, having 
brought together a 
strong, vibrant, de-
vout community of 
believers. On Sep-
tember 7, 1993, du-
ring the visit to Li-
thuania, Pope John 
Paul II consecrated 
both the church and the future school. 
Currently, the Jesuit Catholic Primary 
School operates near the church.

The Jesuit monkhood was esta-
blished in Šiauliai in 1930. In 1936, 
under the leadership of Benediktas 
Andruška (the first rector), a public 
stone oratory was built. In the spring 
of 1949, St Ignatius Loyola Church 
and Monastery were closed. The 

church was turned into a warehouse, 
later, into a gym. In 1986, pretending 
that there was a necessity to build a 
small theatre, the then city authorities 
received funding and started the res-
toration of the church. In 1988, the Li-
thuanian dramaturgy festival “Atgaiva”  
took place in it. In 1990, the church 
was returned to believers and on De-
cember 22, consecrated.

Šiaulių tikintiesiems popiežiaus apsi-
lankymo neleidžia pamiršti nutikęs ste-
buklas: popiežius, klūpėdamas Šv. Igna-
co Lojolos bažnyčioje, išsitepė dažais, o 
prie bažnyčios vėliau pastatytoje skulp-
tūroje pastebėta raudona dėmė – kaip 
tik toje vietoje, kur popiežius išsitepė.

Šiauliai believers cannot forget the 
Pope’s visit because of the miracle 
that happened: the Pope, kneeling  in 
the Church of St Ignatius Loyola, sme-
ared with paint, and in the sculpture 
that was later built near the church, 
a red stain was noticed right in that 

place were the 
Pope smeared 
his garment. 

In the chur-
chyard of Šiauliai 
St Ignatius Lo-
yola Church, the 
monument to 
Pope John Paul 
II was built. This 
impressive piece 
of art made by 
the sculptor from 
Vilnius Mindau-
gas Junčys was 
presented to the 

church by Žukliai family from Šiauliai. 
Commemorating the twentieth an-

niversary of the Pope’s visit to Lithu-
ania, Šiauliai city council named the 
path from the boulevard to the Pope’s 
sculpture after Pope John Paul II. The 
beginning of the path is marked by 
a memorial stone, which completes 
perpetuation of the Pope’s visit to 
Šiauliai.

St Ignatius Loyola Church

Vilniaus St. 247b, Šiauliai 
Phone: +370 698 33 300

M
as

s 
ti

m
es On Sundays: 

9 am, 11 am
On Saturdays:  
10 am

On weekdays: 
6 pm (except 
Monday)

If God is sending you a lot of suffering, it is a sign that He has great plans for 
you and that certainly wants to make you holy. The more generous you will 
be to God, the more you will experience his nobleness. 

  Saint Ignatius Loyola

„

     DO YOU KNOW THAT...
Every Thursday after the 
evening Mass, the church 
organises the adoration of 
Blessed Sacrament. On the 
first Friday of every month, 
an evening of Prayer and 
Wake with the National  
Association of Exorcists is 
held. 

The Monument 
to Pope John Paul II

Paminklas 
popiežiui Jonui Pauliui II

Vilniaus g. 247b, Šiauliai 
(šalia Šv. Ignaco Lojolos bažnyčios)

Vilniaus St. 247 b, Šiauliai 
(near St Ignatius Loyola Church)

Don’t be afraid! Open, throw open 
the gate wide to Christ. Open sta-
te borders, economic and political 
systems to his rescuing power.

Nebijokite! Atverkite, plačiai at-
lapokite vartus Kristui. Atverkite 
jo gelbėjančiai galiai valstybių 
sienas, ekonomines ir politines 
sistemas.

„ „

?

Šiaulių Šv. Ignaco Lojolos bažnyčios 
šventoriuje pastatytas paminklas po-
piežiui Jonui Pauliui II. Šį įspūdingą vil-
niečio skulptoriaus Mindaugo Junčio 
kūrinį bažnyčiai padovanojo šiauliečių 
Žuklių šeima.

Minint popiežiaus vizito Lietuvoje dvi-
dešimtmetį, Šiaulių miesto taryba takui 
nuo bulvaro iki popiežiaus skulptūros 
suteikė Popiežiaus Jono Pauliaus  II 
vardą. Tako pradžią žymi paminklinis 
akmuo, kuriuo užbaigiamas popiežiaus 
vizito Šiauliuose įamžinimas.
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     DO YOU KNOW THAT...
 At 12 pm and before every Mass, 
also, meeting the newlyweds, before 
baptising, Carillon bells sound. On 
May 13, 2018, the organ – the gift 
from Swiss Catholics – was 
inaugurated. Perpetual adoration of 
the Most Blessed Sacrament takes 
place in this church.

     AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
12 val. ir prieš kiekvienas šv. Mišias, 
pasitinkant jaunavedžius, prieš 
krikštynas skamba kariljono varpai. 
2018 m. gegužės 13 d. bažnyčioje 
atsirado vargonai – tai Šveicarijos 
katalikų dovana. Šioje bažnyčioje 
vyksta nuolatinė Švenčiausiojo 
Sakramento adoracija.

Modernios bažny-
čios (projekto auto-
riai D. Jakubauskas 
ir A. Vernys) archi-
tektūra turi simbo-
linę prasmę   – pas-
tatas primena du 
maldai suglaustus 
delnus. Bažnyčios 
pašventinimas vy-
ko 2009 m. gruo-
džio  6 d. 

Švč. Mergelės 
Marijos Nekaltojo 
Prasidėjimo bažny-
čia įkurta 1993   m. 
spalio mėnesį nebaigtuose statyti 
„Nuklono“ kultūros namuose. 2006 m. 
bažnyčia persikėlė į kitas patalpas. 

2010 m. rugsėjo 26 d. pašventinti 
naujieji parapijos namai. Juose įkurtos 

The consecration of the modern 
church building (authors of the design 
D. Jakubauskas and A. Vernys), whose 
Modern architecture also bears a sym-
bolic meaning – the building reminds 
two palms put together for the prayer, 
took place on December 6, 2009.

The church of the Immaculate Con-
ception of Blessed Virgin Mary was fo-
unded in October, 1993, in the former 
unfinished cultural house of the fac-
tory “Nuklonas”. In 2006, the church 
moved to other temporary premises.

On September 26, 2010, the new 
parish house was consecrated. It ho-
uses 4 Catholic classrooms for those 
preparing for the First Holy Commu-
nion and the Sacrament of Confirma-

Church of the Immaculate Conception of Blessed Virgin Mary

tion, Caritas and  Parish halls, and a 
funeral home.

The Stations of the Cross created by 
sculptor priest A. Rimavičius (1865-
1933) decorate the walls of the church. 
A. Rimavičius’ works are a peculiar and 
original branch of Lithuanian and La-
tvian folk culture of the end of the 19th 
century - the beginning of the 20th 
century.

Švč. Mergelės Marijos Nekaltojo Prasidėjimo bažnyčia

Gegužių g. 57, Šiauliai 
www.mmarijosparapija.lt 
Tel. +370 41 500 010 
Mob. +370 677 34 177

Šv
. M

iš
ių

 la
ik

as

Bažnyčia atidaroma 7.00 val. ir 
uždaroma 19.00 val.

Šiokiadieniais: 
8, 17, 18 val.

Šeštadieniais: 
10, 11, 18 val.

Sekmadieniais: 
9.30, 11, 12.30, 
18 val.
Nuolatinės ado-
racijos koplyčioje 
žmonės gali 
melstis ištisą parą 

4 katalikiškos klasės besiruošiantie-
siems Pirmajai Komunijai ir Sutvirtini-
mo sakramentui, „Carito“, parapijos 
salės, laidojimo namai. 

Ant bažnyčios sienų – skulptoriaus 
kun. A. Rimavičiaus (1865–1933) su-
kurtos Kryžiaus kelio stotys. A. Rimavi-
čiaus kūryba – savita ir originali XIX a. 
pab. – XX a. pr. lietuvių ir latvių liaudies 
kultūros atšaka.

Gegužių St. 57, Šiauliai 
www.mmarijosparapija.lt 
Phone: +370 41 500 010 
Mobile: +370 677 34 177 M

as
s 

ti
m

es

The church is 
opened at 7 am 
and closed at 7 pm

On weekdays: 
6 am, 5 pm, 
6 pm

On Saturdays: 
10 am, 11 am, 
6 pm

On Sundays: 
9.30 am, 11 am, 
12.30 am, 6 pm

People can pray in the Chapel 
of Perpetual Adoration 
of Sacrament all 24 hours

?

?
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     DO YOU KNOW THAT ...
In 2009, bishop of Šiauliai Eugenijus 
Bartulis founded St Joseph the Worker 
Parish in Rėkyva.
St Joseph the Worker Parish in Rėkyva 
revives most at the beginning of 
September, when pilgrims heading 
for Šiluva from the Hill of Crosses stop 
for night adoration.

piliakalnis, – viena unikaliausių Lietu-
vos šventviečių, nuo Šiaulių nutolęs 
per 12 km į šiaurės rytus. Ant piliakal-
nio stovėjo 1348 m. minima Kulių pi-
lis. Piliakalnis buvo apardytas dėl nuo 
XIX  a. vidurio jame pradėtų statyti ir 
tarybiniu laikotarpiu 1961 m., 1975 m. 
imtų griauti kryžių. 

2000 m. prie Kryžių kalno pastatytas 
pranciškonų vienuolynas. Kryžių kalne 
aukojamos šv. mišios, vyksta Kryžių 
kalno atlaidai.

     AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
Nuo seno vietos gyventojai Kryžių 
kalną laikė šventa vieta. Kryžiai, stulpai, 
koplytėlės, paveikslai, rožiniai ir kt. yra 
votai, t. y. daiktai, paliekami dėkojant 
ar ko nors prašant. Kryžių kalnas yra 
dvasinės kultūros objektas ir meno 
paminklas.

Lietuvoje yra vos kelios tokį šv. Juo-
zapo Darbininko vardą turinčios baž-
nyčios – viena jų yra Šiaulių priemies-
tyje, Rėkyvoje. 

Bažnyčia savo spalvingą gyvavimą 
pradėjo 1800 m. Pastatyta kaip Karpių 
dvaro koplyčia, 1936 m. gavo bažny-
čios statusą. 

Dvaro gyvavimo laikotarpiu šiame 
pastate veikė kalvė. 1935 m. statinys 
visiškai pakeičiamas ir jame įrengiama 
bažnyčia. Apie 1956 m. bažnyčia buvo 
uždaryta ir išdraskyta – čia įrengtas 
sandėlis.

Rėkyvos gyventojų ir Šiaulių Šv. apaš-
talų Petro ir Pauliaus bažnyčios klebo-
no monsinjoro Kleopo Jakaičio pastan-
gomis 1991 m. pradžioje bažnyčia vėl 
pašventinta.

     AR ŽINOTE, KAD...
2009 m. Šiaulių vyskupas Eugenijus 
Bartulis įkūrė Rėkyvos šv. Juozapo Dar-
bininko parapiją.  Rėkyvos Šv. Juozapo 
Darbininko bažnyčia labiausiai atgyja 
rugsėjo pradžioje – čia vyksta naktinės 
adoracijos piligrimų, einančių iš Kryžių 
kalno į Šiluvą. 

There are only a few churches na-
med after St Joseph the Worker in 
Lithuania – one of them is in Šiauliai 
suburb, Rėkyva.

The church began its colourful life in 
1800. Built as Karpiai Manor Chapel, 
in 1936, it acquired the status of the 
church.

During the period of the existence 
of the manor, this building housed 
a smithy. In 1935, the structure was 
completely changed by equipping 
the church in it. Around 1956, the 
church was closed and ravaged – a 
warehouse was set up.

Through the efforts of Rėkyva resi-
dents and pastor of St Apostles Peter 
and Paul’ Church monsignor Kleopas 
Jakaitis, at the beginning of 1991, the 
church was consecrated again. 

Rėkyvos Šv. Juozapo 
Darbininko bažnyčia

Rėkyva St Joseph 
the Worker Church

Sekmadieniais – 
8.30 val.

Suskaičiuota, kad Kryžių kalne yra 
apie 200 tūkst. kryžių: 53 įrašyti į Kultū-
ros vertybių registrą (2013 m.). Kryžiai 
statomi dėl įvairių priežasčių: asmeniš-
kai svarbių įvykių proga, dažnai žymin-
čių vieno gyvenimo etapo pabaigą ar 
kito pradžią: vestuvės, krikštynos, mo-
kyklos baigimas, organizacijų įkūrimas 
(kryžius čia pastatytas ir įkūrus Šiaulių 
vyskupiją), minint svarbius jubiliejus ir 
sukaktis. 

Pats svarbiausias įvykis Kryžių kalno 
istorijoje, išgarsinęs jį visame pasauly-
je, – popiežiaus Jono Pauliaus II apsi-
lankymas jame. 1993 m. rugsėjo 7 d. 
Šventasis Tėvas meldėsi Kryžių kalne, 
aukojo šv. Mišias prie kalno pastatyto-
je koplyčioje. 

Kryžių kalnas, Jurgaičių (Domantų) 

Kryžių kalnas

Jurgaičių k., Šiaulių r., tel. +370 41 370 860

Tauta, kuri su tokiu ištvermingumu ir pamaldumu keliauja į tą kalną pastatyti 
naują kryžių, tiki gyvenimu, tiki prisikėlimu.

Jonas Paulius II

„On Sundays: 
8.30 am.

Poilsio g. 1a, Šiauliai, tel. +370 620 52 072 Poilsio St. 1a, Šiauliai, +370 620 52 072
Šv
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It is counted that there are about 
200,000 crosses on the Hill of Cros-
ses: 53 are included in the Register of 
Cultural Property (2013). Crosses are 
built for various reasons: on personal 
occasions that often mark the end 
of one stage of life or the beginning 
of another (weddings, christenings, 
school graduation, founding of or-
ganizations (the cross was built here 
after establishing the Diocese of Šiau-

liai too), important jubilees and anni-
versaries.

The most significant event in the 
history of the Hill of Crosses that made 
it famous throughout the world is the 
visit of Pope John Paul II on Septem-
ber 7, 1993. The Holy Father prayed 
on the Hill of Crosses, celebrated 
Mass in the chapel built on the hill.

The Hill of Crosses, Jurgaičiai (Do-
mantai) mound, one of the most unique 
shrines in Lithuania, is located 12 km 
northeast of Šiauliai. Kuliai castle menti-
oned in 1348 stood on the mound. The 
mound was damaged by building cros-
ses on it from the middle of the 19th 
century and demolishing them in the 
Soviet period in 1961, 1975.

In 2000, the Franciscan Monastery 
was built near the Hill of Crosses. Prac-
tices of permanent Christian religious 
life are formed at the Hill of Crosses: 
Holy Mass is held, indulgence feasts 
of the Hill of Crosses take place.

Šv. Jonas Paulius II – pirmasis Lietuvą 
aplankęs popiežius. Popiežiaus vizitui 
atminti svarbiausios Lietuvos švento-
vės buvo sujungtos į Jono Pauliaus II 
vardu pavadintą piligrimystės kelią. 
Kelyje yra 19 objektų, kelio ilgis   – 
1050 km. Šiame kelyje yra ir Šiauliai: 
Šiaulių Šv. apaštalų Petro ir Pauliaus 
katedra – popiežiaus Jono Pauliaus  II 
1997 m. įsteigtos Šiaulių vyskupijos 
širdis, Šv. Ignaco Lojolos (jėzuitų) baž-
nyčia, kurioje 1993 m. rugsėjo 7 d. 
vizito į Lietuvą metu Jonas Paulius II 
buvo sustojęs pailsėti. 

Šiaulių centriniame bulvare, prie su-
sikirtimo su taku pastatytas paminkli-
nis akmuo žymi tako vietą ir tarsi rodo 
į paminklą popiežiui, pastatytą prie 
Šv.  Ignaco Lojolos bažnyčios. Šiuo pa-
minkliniu akmeniu baigtas popiežiaus 
vizito Šiauliuose įamžinimas.

Paminklą sukūrė ir sumontavo skulp-
torius M. Junčys. Ant jo iškalta citata iš 
Jono Pauliaus II kalbos: „Nebijokite! 
Atverkite, plačiai atlapokite vartus 
Kristui. Atverkite jo gelbėjančiai galiai 
valstybių sienas, ekonomines ir politi-
nes sistemas.“

St John Paul II is the first pope visi-
ting Lithuania. To remember the Po-
pe’s visit to Lithuania, the most impor-
tant Lithuanian shrines were joined 
to the pilgrimage road named after 
John Paul II. There are 19 objects on 
the road; its length is 1050 km. This 
road also includes Šiauliai: Šiauliai St 
Apostles Peter and Paul’s Cathedral, 
which is the heart of Šiauliai diocese 
established by Pope John Paul II in 
1997, and St Ignatius Loyola (Jesuit) 
Church, where on September 7, 1993, 
during his visit to Lithuania, John Paul 
II stopped to rest. 

A memorial stone laid at the inter-
section of Šiauliai pedestrian boule-
vard with the path marks the locati-
on of the path and as if points at the 
monument to the Pope, built near the 
Church of St Ignatius Loyola. This me-
morial stone completes perpetuation 
of the Pope’s visit in Šiauliai. 

The monument was created and 
assembled by sculptor M. Junčys. A 
quote from the speech of John Paul 
II is chiselled on it: “Don’t be afraid! 
Open, throw open the gate wide to 
Christ. Open state borders, economic 
and political systems to his rescuing 
power.”

ŠV. JOKŪBO KELIAS
 Šiaulių miesto savivaldybė – vie-

na Šv. Jokūbo kelio savivaldybių 
asociacijos narių  –  parengė maršrutą 
po Šiaulių miestą, kurio tikslas – atrasti 
šv. Jokūbo kelius Šiauliuose, aplankyti 
numatytas kelio stoteles ir šventoves. 
Išsamią šio maršruto informaciją rasite 
Šiaulių turizmo informacijos centre.

Piligrimo pasą galima gauti Šiau-
lių turizmo informacijos centre, Vil-
niaus  g. 213.

ST JACOB’S ROAD
Šiauliai City Municipality is one 

of the members of the Association 
of St Jacob’s Road Municipalities and 
prepared a route around Šiauliai city 
with the aim to discover St Jacob’s ro-
ads in Šiauliai, visit the planned road 
stops and shrines. Detailed informati-
on about this route is available at Šiau-
liai Tourism Information Centre.

A Pilgrim’s Passport can be obtained 
at Šiauliai Tourism Information Centre, 
Vilniaus St. 213

The Hill of Crosses

Jurgaičiai village, Šiauliai district 
Phone +370 41 370 860

 A nation that travels to that hill to build a new cross with such perseverance 
and piety, believes in life, believes in resurrection.

John Paul II

„

     DO YOU 
     KNOW THAT...
Since long ago, locals 
considered the Hill of 
Crosses a sacred place. 
Crosses, poles, chapels, 
paintings, rosaries, 
etc. are votive; i.e., 
left when thanking or 
asking for something. 
The Hill of Crosses is 
an object of spiritual 
culture and an art 
monument.

?

Jono Pauliaus II kelias The Road of John Paul II
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Automobiliu
Koordinatės: 56°0’54”N 23°24’56”E
A12 kelias, Joniškio, Rygos link. 
Prie ženklo „KRYŽIŲ KALNAS – 2 km“ 
sukti dešinėn.

Viešuoju transportu
Šiaulių autobusų stotis, Joniškio 
kryptis, 12 stotelė:
7.25 (išskyrus sekmadienį); 8.25 (sa-
vaitgaliais); 9.00 (darbo dienomis); 
10.25; 11.00; 12.15; 13.10; 13.50; 
14.45; 15.40; 17.30; 18.00; 20.30 val.
Išlipti „DOMANTŲ“ stotelėje. 

Iš „DOMANTŲ“ stotelės į Šiaulius:
7.33 (išskyrus sekmadienį); 8.07; 9.32 
(išskyrus sekmadienį); 10.43; 11.47; 
12.12; 13.03; 14.03; 15.02; 16.22; 
17.27; 18.20; 20.15 val.

     Pastaba. 
Autobusų išvykimo laikas gali keistis, 
informaciją būtina pasitikrinti Auto-
busų stotyje.

Dviračiais arba taksi
Šiaulių turizmo informacijos centre 
galima išsinuomoti dviračius arba už-
sisakyti taksi.
Dviračių nuomos kaina: 1 val. – 1 Eur.
Taksi kaina – pagal susitarimą.

Pastaba. 
Dviračiai nuomojami 
gegužės–spalio mėnesiais. 

By car
Coordinates: 56°0’54”N 23°24’56”E
Road  A12, to Joniškis, Ryga. 
Turn right at the sign  KRYŽIŲ 
KALNAS – 2 km.

By public transport
From Šiauliai bus station, Joniškis 
direction, stop No.12.
7.25 am (except Sunday); 8.25 am (at 
the weekends); 9 am (on weekdays); 
10.25 am; 11am; 12.15 pm; 1.10 pm; 
1.50 pm; 2.45 pm; 3.40 pm; 5.30 pm; 
6 pm; 8.30 pm.
To get off at the DOMAINTŲ stop.

From the DOMANTŲ stop to Šiauliai.
7.33 am (except Sunday); 8.07 am; 9.32 
am (except Sunday); 10.43 am; 11.47 am; 
12.12 pm; 1.03 pm; 2.03 pm; 3.02 pm; 
4.22 pm; 5.27 pm; 6.20 pm; 8.15 pm.

     Note.
Bus times are subject to change, it is 
necessary to check at the bus station.

By bicycles or taxi
Bicycles can be rented or taxis can be 
booked at Šiauliai Tourist Information 
Centre.
Bicycle rental: 1 hour/€1
Taxi fare: according to the agreement.

Note. 
Bicycles are rented 
in May-October. 

•	Liepos paskutinį savaitgalį – 
   Kryžių kalno atlaidai (Kryžių kalnas).

•	Savaitė po šv. Velykų – muzikos festi-
valis „Resurrexit“ (Šv. apaštalų Petro 
ir Pauliaus katedra).

•	Trijų karalių šventės dieną – Šiaulių 
vyskupijos šeimų šventė (Šiaulių 
arena).

•	The last weekend of July –  
•	indulgence feasts of the Hill of 

Crosses (the Hill of Crosses).

•	Week after Holy Easter – the music 
festival “Resurrexit” (St Apostles 

•	Peter and Paul’s Cathedral).

•	On the day of the Feast of the Three 
Kings – the festival of families of 
Šiauliai Diocese (Šiauliai Arena).

Kaip nuvykti į Kryžių kalną? How to get to the Hill of Crosses?

! !

RENGINIAI EVENTS

!

!
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